PRIVATE COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE

ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION

OF

BRITISH TAEKWONDO COUNCIL LIMITED (Company Number 07428946)

(Adopted by the BTC Ltd Board at a General Meeting on 11th July 2022)

INTRODUCTION

1 Interpretation

1.1 In these Articles, unless the context otherwise requires:

Act: means the Companies Act 2006;

Annual General Meeting: the annual general meeting of the Company

Articles: means the Company's articles of association for the time being in force;

Board: the Board of directors of the Company the members of which are the directors of the Company for the purposes of the Act;

Chair: the chair of the Board appointed pursuant to Article 36;

Chief Operating Officer: the chief operating officer of the Company from time to time;

Clear days: a period of days exclusive of the day on which a notice is served or deemed to be served and of the day for which it is given;

Competition Rules: the competition rules as laid down by the Board and including the international rules of competition and eligibility established by relevant international bodies;

Conflict: means a situation in which a director has or can have, a direct or indirect interest that conflicts or possibly may conflict, with the interests of the Company;

Disciplines of Taekwondo: all disciplines of Taekwondo the principal ones being:

- i Sparring
- ii Patterns
- iii Power
- iv Traditional Sparring

Electronic form: the same meaning as in the Act;

Hard copy form: the same meaning as in the Act;

Eligible Director: means a director who would be entitled to vote on the matter at a meeting of directors (but excluding in relation to the authorisation of a Conflict pursuant to Article 64, any director whose vote is not to be counted in respect of the particular matter);

Full Members: such organisations admitted to Full Membership in accordance with these Articles:

Provisional Members: such persons as are admitted to Provisional Membership in accordance with these Articles;

Basic Members: such groups of persons as are admitted to Basic Membership in accordance with these Articles;

Club Members: such groups of persons as are admitted to Club Membership in accordance with these Articles:

Licence Holders: such persons as are issued with individual membership in accordance with these Articles;

Member or Members: members of the Company in any one of the categories of membership described in Article 8:

Model Articles: means the model articles for private companies limited by guarantee contained in Schedule 2 of the Companies (Model Articles) Regulations 2008 (SI 2008/3229) as amended prior to the date of adoption of these Articles and reference to a numbered "Model Article" (and for ease of reference scheduled to these Articles) is a reference to that article of the Model Articles.

The United Kingdom: the United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland, the Channel Islands, Gibraltar and such other British Overseas Territories coming under the Company's remit from time to time:

Website: the Company's website, which may be accessed at www.tkdcouncil.com or such other successor website as is notified from time to time.

- 1.2 Save as otherwise specifically provided in these Articles, words and expressions which have particular meanings in the Model Articles shall have the same meanings in these Articles, subject to which and unless the context otherwise requires, words and expressions which have particular meanings in the Act shall have the same meanings in these Articles.
- 1.3 Headings in these Articles are used for convenience only and shall not affect the construction or interpretation of these Articles.
- 1.4 A reference in these Articles to an "article" is a reference to the relevant article of these Articles unless expressly provided otherwise.
- 1.5 Unless expressly provided otherwise, a reference to a statute, statutory provision or subordinate legislation is a reference to it as it is in force from time to time, taking account of:
- i any subordinate legislation from time to time made under it; and
- ii any amendment or re-enactment and includes any statute, statutory provision or subordinate legislation which it amends or re-enacts.
- 1.6 Any phrase introduced by the terms "including", "include", "in particular" or any similar expression shall be construed as illustrative and shall not limit the sense of the words preceding those terms.
- 1.7 Unless the context otherwise requires, a reference to one gender shall include a reference to other genders.

2 Objects

The objects for which the Company is established are to act as the governing body for Taekwondo in the United Kingdom and as such:

- i Promote the martial art, sport, study and practice of Taekwondo in the United Kingdom.
- ii Organise, regulate and control the martial art, sport, study and practice of Taekwondo in the United Kingdom.
- iii To assist, co-operate with and support member organisations in both national and any international affiliations they may have.
- iv Act as an advisory body on all matters appertaining to the sport and practice of Taekwondo, through liaison with statutory and voluntary bodies, news media and relevant parties.
- v Do all such other things as are incidental or conducive to the furtherance of the objects of the British Taekwondo Council Ltd.
- vi to develop broad strategy for performance, development and competition throughout the United Kingdom;
- vii to develop programmes for Taekwondo and support transition from other sports throughout the United Kingdom in accordance with policies developed by the Company;
- viii to establish and be responsible for the maintenance of:
 - a) common rules for competition (the enforcement of which shall be by British Taekwondo Council Ltd); and
 - b) an anti-doping policy (the enforcement of which shall be by the Company);
- ix to secure, as far as practicable, a uniform policy in all matters affecting the administration and development of Taekwondo in the United Kingdom and to that end to set out the respective roles and functions of the Company;

- x to monitor the governance of all members involved in the implementation and delivery of programmes and strategies developed by the Company;
- xi to develop, lead and assist in commercial, marketing and public relations policies and activities for Taekwondo in the United Kingdom;
- xii to develop and nurture relationships between the Company and the United Kingdom and Devolved Administrations' Sports Councils, British Taekwondo (BT), GB Taekwondo, Disability Groups and any relevant Government Departments;
- xiii to co-ordinate fixtures across the United Kingdom where applicable;
- xiv to oversee the selection and co-ordination of officials for United Kingdom BTC Taekwondo events:
- xv to select and co-ordinate teams to represent the United Kingdom if called upon; and
- xvi to act (if the Board so decides) as the final arbiter in relation to disputes referred to the Company.

3 In furtherance of the above objects

(but not further or otherwise) the Company shall have the following powers:

- to purchase, take on lease or in exchange, hire or otherwise acquire real or personal property and rights or privileges anywhere in the United Kingdom, and to construct, maintain and alter buildings or erections;
- ii to sell, manage, let or mortgage, dispose of or turn to account all or any of the property or assets of the Company subject to such consents as may be required by law;
- iii to execute and do all such other instruments, acts and things as may be requisite for the efficient management, development and administration of the said property;
- iv to borrow or raise money for the objects of the Company on such terms and on such security as may be thought fit subject to such consents as may be required by law;
- to accept any gift of money, property or other assets whether subject to any special trust or not for the objects of the Company;
- vi to print or publish any newspapers, periodicals, books, articles or leaflets;
- vii to raise funds and organise appeals and invite and receive contributions by way of subscription, donation and otherwise;
- viii to draw, make, accept, endorse, discount, execute and issue promissory notes, bills, cheques and other instruments and to operate bank accounts;
- ix to invest moneys of the Company not immediately required for its purposes in or upon such investments, securities or property as may be thought fit, subject nevertheless to such conditions (if any) and such consents (if any) as may for the time being be imposed or required by law and subject also as hereinafter provided;
- to make any donations in cash or assets or establish or support or aid in the establishment or support of or constitute or lend money (with or without security) to or for any trusts, clubs, or associations or institutions which are for the benefit of Taekwondo in the United Kingdom or any part thereof;
- xi to engage and pay any person or persons whether on a full-time or part-time basis or whether as consultant or employee, to supervise, organise, carry on the work of and/or advise the Company;
- xii subject to the provisions of Clause 3 hereof to make any reasonable and necessary provision for the payment of pensions and superannuation to or on behalf of employees or former employees and their spouses and dependents;

- xiii to collaborate with any companies, institutions, societies or associations which shall have objects altogether or mainly similar to those of the Company or which are for the benefit of Taekwondo in the United Kingdom;
- xiv to pay out of funds of the Company the costs, charges and expenses of and incidental to the formation and registration of the Company;
- xv to do all such other lawful things as will further the attainment of the objects of the Company or any of them.

4 The Company

is a company limited by guarantee and the income and property of the Company shall be applied solely towards the promotion of its objects as set forth herein.

5 The liability of the Members is limited.

6 Every Member of the Company

undertakes to contribute to the assets of the Company, in the event of the same being wound up while he is a Member, or within one year after he ceases to be a Member, for payment of the debts and liabilities of the Company contracted before he ceases to be a Member and of the costs, charges and expenses of winding-up and for the adjustment of the rights of the contributories among themselves, such amount as may be required not exceeding £1 (One pound Sterling).

7 **If, upon the winding up or dissolution of the Company,** there remains after the satisfaction of all its debts and liabilities any property whatsoever the same shall not be paid to or distributed among the Members of the Company. Such surplus property shall instead be given or transferred to some other institution or institutions:

- i having objects similar to the objects of the Company or which otherwise are for the benefit of Taekwondo in the United Kingdom or any part thereof; or
- ii which otherwise are for some philanthropic or charitable purpose, provided that such institution(s) prohibit the distribution of its or their income and property to an extent at least as great as is imposed on the Company under or by virtue of Clause 4 hereof. Such institution or institutions shall be determined by the Board at or before the time of dissolution and in so far as effect cannot be given to such provisions then such property shall be disposed of at the discretion of the Board for some other philanthropic or charitable purpose or purposes.

MEMBERSHIP

8 The Company has the following categories of members, defined in Articles 9 to 12 below:

- i Full Members
- ii Provisional Members
- iii Basic Members
- iv Club Members

9 **Membership categories** are as follows:

- i ITF
 - Pay ITF affiliation fees
 - Purchase ITF black belt certificates
 - Compete in ITF affiliated tournaments
- ii **Independent**
 - None of the above

MEMBERSHIPS, VOTING AND APPLICATION (APPENDIX C MEMBERSHIP OF BTC APPLICATION PROCESS)

10 Membership to the British Taekwondo Council shall be defined in the following categories:

i FULL MEMBERS

Full members shall be any group which fulfil the following criteria. A Full Member may appoint one representative to the board and two representatives to executive/membership services meetings.

Full member criteria:

- 1000+ members
- Constitution, rules and regulations
- BTC ioining fee*
- All club instructors to achieve BTC Registered Instructor accreditation within 6 months
- All club instructors to be in possession of BTC Professional Indemnity Insurance within one month of joining
- All members to be in possession of BTC member-to-member insurance within one month of joining
- Appoint Safeguarding and Club Welfare officers in line with the BTC Safeguarding Policy

To maintain membership status annual figures should be no less than figures quoted, failure to make these figures in any given year will result in a review of membership status and the possibility, should their number fall below 250, lose Basic Council Member status and be aligned with a Member Organisation in good standing with the BTC. In addition, unpaid or shortfall of fees will become due.

*BTC current fees as detailed on the BTC website. These include the BTC Joining fee, BTC Registered Instructor accreditation fee, Professional Indemnity and Member-to-Member insurance.

ii PROVISIONAL MEMBERS

Provisional members shall be any group which fulfil the following criteria. A Provisional Member may appoint one representative to attend Executive/membership services meetings and represented at board meetings by an Executive lead.

Provisional Member criteria:

- 500+ members
- Constitution, rules and regulations
- BTC joining fee
- All club instructors to achieve BTC Registered Instructor accreditation within 6 months
- All club instructors to be in possession of BTC Professional Indemnity Insurance within one month of joining
- All members to be in possession of BTC member-to-member insurance within one month of joining
- Appoint Safeguarding and Club Welfare officers in line with the BTC Safeguarding Policy

To maintain membership status annual figures should be no less than figures quoted, failure to make these figures in any given year will result in a review of membership status and the possibility, should their number fall below 250, lose Basic Council Member status and be aligned with a Member Organisation in good standing with the BTC. In addition, unpaid or shortfall of fees will become due.

Provisional membership shall be granted under such terms and condition as the Management Council shall, at the time of the election of the provisional member, deem appropriate. Provisional Members shall have no voting rights but shall be entitled to appoint one representative to attend Management Council meetings.

iii BASIC MEMBERS

Basic members shall be any group which fulfil the following criteria. A Basic Member may appoint one representative to attend Executive/membership services meetings and represented at board meetings by an Executive lead. Provisional member criteria:

- 250+ members
- Constitution, rules and regulations
- BTC joining fee
- All club instructors to achieve BTC Registered Instructor accreditation within 6 months
- All club instructors to be in possession of BTC Professional Indemnity Insurance within one month of joining
- All members to be in possession of BTC member-to-member insurance within one month of joining
- Appoint Safeguarding and Club Welfare officers in line with the BTC Safeguarding Policy

To maintain membership status annual figures should be no less than figures quoted, failure to make these figures in any given year will result in a review of membership status and the possibility, should their number fall below 250, lose Basic Member status and be aligned with a Member Organisation in good standing with the BTC. In addition, unpaid or shortfall of fees will become due.

iv **CLUB MEMBERS**

Club members shall be any group which fulfil the following criteria. A Club Member will be represented at Board meetings by an Executive lead.

Club member criteria:

- 1-250 members
- Constitution, rules and regulations
- BTC joining fee
- All club instructors to achieve BTC Registered Instructor accreditation within 6 months
- All club instructors to be in possession of BTC Professional Indemnity Insurance within one month of joining
- All members to be in possession of BTC member-to-member insurance within one month of joining
- Appoint Safeguarding and Club Welfare officers in line with the BTC Safeguarding Policy

To maintain membership status, monthly figures must be submitted which will result in a review of membership status and the possibility, should their number increase above 250, Basic Member status will be applied.

11 LICENCE HOLDERS

shall be persons in current membership of a Full, Provisional, Basic or Club member of the British Taekwondo Council Ltd. Individual licence holders shall have no voting rights and shall not be entitled in that capacity to attend Board meetings.

12 Any Member may resign

at any time by giving at least one month's notice in hard or electronic copy form to the Company. The rights and obligations of Members are not transferable.

13 Resignation from the Company

by a Member shall not affect any liability of such Member arising prior to the date of such resignation.

14 Every corporation and unincorporated association which is admitted to Membership may exercise such powers as are prescribed by section 323 of the Act. It shall be the duty of the Board if at any time it shall be of the opinion that the interests of the Company so require, by notice in hard copy form sent by prepaid post to a Member's address to that Member to request that Member to withdraw from Membership within a time specified in such notice. No such notice

shall be sent except on a vote of the majority of the Board present and voting, which majority shall include one half of the total number of the Board for the time being.

15 **If, on the expiry of the time specified in such notice,** the Member concerned has not withdrawn from Membership by submitting written notice of its resignation, or if at any time after receipt of the notice requesting it to withdraw from Membership, the Member concerned shall so request in hard copy form, the matter shall be submitted to a properly convened and constituted meeting of the Board. The Board and the Member whose expulsion is under consideration shall be given at least 14 clear days' notice of the meeting, and such notice shall specify the matter to be discussed. The Member concerned shall at the meeting be entitled to present a statement in its defence either verbally or in hard copy form, and it shall not be required to withdraw from Membership unless half of the Board present and voting shall, after receiving the statement in its defence, vote for its expulsion, or unless the Member concerned fails to attend the meeting without sufficient reason being given. If such a vote is carried, or if the Member concerned shall fail to attend the meeting without sufficient reason being given, it shall thereupon cease to be a Member and its name shall be erased from the register of Members.

GENERAL MEETINGS

- 16 **The Board shall hold a meeting** in every calendar year as its Annual General Meeting at such time and place as may be determined by the Board and shall specify the meeting as such in the notices calling it. Subject to Article 22.5.1, only Board Members and invited Executive Officers may receive notice of, attend the Annual General Meeting.
- 17 Each Full Board member shall have one vote at such a Meeting.
- 18 The Annual General Meeting shall be held for the following purposes:
- i to approve the minutes of the previous Annual General Meeting:
- ii to receive from the Board a full statement of account;
- to receive from the Board a report of the activities of the Company since the previous annual general meeting
- iv to transact such other business as may be brought before it at the sole discretion of the Board.

19 The Company may convene and hold extraordinary general meetings

The Board shall convene such meetings as and when required with 7 days notice. The notice shall specify the place, the day and the hour of the meeting, and the business to be transacted at that meeting, and shall be given to all Directors.

20 Annual General Meetings and extraordinary general meetings

shall be called by at least 14 days notice. The notice shall specify the place, the day and the hour of the meeting, and the business to be transacted at that meeting, and shall be given to all Directors.

21 **The accidental omission to give notice** of a meeting to, or the non-receipt of such notice by, any person entitled to receive notice thereof shall not invalidate any resolution passed, or proceedings had, at any meeting.

22 Adjournments

- 22.1 If the persons attending a general meeting within half an hour of the time at which the meeting was due to start do not constitute a quorum, or if during a meeting a quorum ceases to be present, the chair of the meeting must adjourn it.
- 22.2 The chair of the meeting may adjourn a general meeting at which a quorum is present if -
- 22.2.1 the meeting consents to an adjournment, or
- 22.2.2 it appears to the chair of the meeting that an adjournment is necessary to protect the safety of any person attending the meeting or ensure that the business of the meeting is conducted in an orderly manner.
- 22.3 The chair of the meeting must adjourn a general meeting if directed to do so by the meeting.
- 22.4 When adjourning a general meeting, the chair of the meeting must:

- 22.4.1 either specify the time and place to which it is adjourned or state that it is to continue at a time and place to be fixed by the directors, and
- 22.4.2 have regard to any directions as to the time and place of any adjournment which have been given by the meeting.
- 22.5 If the continuation of an adjourned meeting is to take place more than 14 days after it was adjourned, the company must give at least 7 clear days' notice of it (that is, excluding the day of the adjourned meeting and the day on which the notice is given):
- 22.5.1 to the same persons to whom notice of the company's general meetings is required to be given, and
- 22.5.2 containing the same information which such notice is required to contain.
- 22.6 No business may be transacted at an adjourned general meeting which could not properly have been transacted at the meeting if the adjournment had not taken place.

PROCEEDINGS AT GENERAL BOARD MEETINGS

23 No business shall be transacted at any general meeting

(being an Annual General Meeting or an extraordinary general meeting) unless a quorum is present when the meeting proceeds to business. Provided five natural persons, including one independent non-executive director, there shall be a quorum.

24 Attendance

- 24.1 A person is able to exercise the right to speak at a general meeting when that person is in a position to communicate to all those attending the meeting, during the meeting, any information or opinions which that person has on the business of the meeting.
- 24.2 A person is able to exercise the right to vote at a general meeting when:
- 24.2.1 that person is able to vote, during the meeting, on resolutions put to the vote at the meeting, and
- 24.2.2 that person's vote can be taken into account in determining whether or not such resolutions are passed at the same time as the votes of all the other persons attending the meeting.
- 24.3 The directors may make whatever arrangements they consider appropriate to enable those attending a general meeting to exercise their rights to speak or vote at it.
- 24.4 In determining attendance at a general meeting, it is immaterial whether any two or more members attending it are in the same place as each other.
- 24.5 Two or more persons who are not in the same place as each other attend a general meeting if their circumstances are such that if they have (or were to have) rights to speak and vote at that meeting, they are (or would be) able to exercise them.

25 Chairing general meetings:

- 25.1 The Chair shall chair general meetings if present and willing to do so.
- 25.2 If Chair is unwilling to chair the meeting or is not present within ten minutes of the time at which a meeting was due to start:
- 25.2.1 the directors present, or
- 25.2.2 (if no directors are present), the meeting, must appoint a director or member to chair the meeting, and the appointment of the chair of the meeting must be the first business of the meeting.
- 25.3 The person chairing a meeting in accordance with this Article is referred to as "the chair of the meeting".

26 Attendance and speaking by directors and non-members

26.1 Directors may attend and speak at general meetings, whether or not they are members.

- 26.2 The chair of the meeting may permit other persons who are not members of the company to attend and speak at a general meeting.
- At any general meeting a resolution put to the vote of the meeting shall be decided on a show of hands by the Full Members present in person or by proxy and entitled to vote, unless a poll is, before or upon the declaration of the result by the show of hands, demanded by the chair of the meeting or by at least one Full Member present in person or by proxy. A declaration by the chair of the meeting that a resolution has been carried, or carried unanimously or by a particular majority, or lost, or not carried by a particular majority, and an entry to that effect in the minutes shall be conclusive evidence of the fact without proof of the number or proportion of the votes recorded in favour of or against that resolution. The demand for a poll may be withdrawn.

28 Errors and disputes

- 28.1 No objection may be raised to the qualification of any person voting at a general meeting except at the meeting or adjourned meeting at which the vote objected to is tendered and every vote not disallowed at the meeting is valid.
- 28.2 Any such objection must be referred to the chair of the meeting whose decision is final.

29 Content of proxy notices

- 29.1 Proxies may only validly be appointed by a notice in writing (a "proxy notice") which:
- 29.1.1 states the name and address of the member appointing the proxy;
- 29.1.2 identifies the person appointed to be that member's proxy and the general meeting in relation to which that person is appointed;
- 29.1.3 is signed by or on behalf of the member appointing the proxy, or is authenticated in such manner as the directors may determine; and
- 29.1.4 is delivered to the company in accordance with the Articles and any instructions contained in the notice of the general meeting to which they relate.
- 29.2 The company may require proxy notices to be delivered in a particular form and may specify different forms for different purposes.
- 29.3 Proxy notices may specify how the proxy appointed under them is to vote (or that the proxy is to abstain from voting) on one or more resolutions.
- 29.4 Unless a proxy notice indicates otherwise, it must be treated as:
- 29.4.1 allowing the person appointed under its discretion as to how to vote on any ancillary or procedural resolutions put to the meeting, and
- 29.4.2 appointing that person as a proxy in relation to any adjournment of the general meeting to which it relates as well as the meeting itself.

30 Delivery of proxy notices

- 30.1 A person who is entitled to attend, speak or vote (either on a show of hands or on a poll) at a general meeting remains so entitled in respect of that meeting or any adjournment of it, even though a valid proxy notice has been delivered to the company by or on behalf of that person.
- 30.2 An appointment under a proxy notice may be revoked by delivering to the company a notice in writing given by or on behalf of the person by whom or on whose behalf the proxy notice was given. 31.3 A notice revoking a proxy appointment only takes effect if it is delivered before the start of the meeting or adjourned meeting to which it relates.
- 30.4 If a proxy notice is not executed by the person appointing the proxy, it must be accompanied by written evidence of the authority of the person who executed it to execute it on the appointor's behalf.

31 Amendments to resolutions

- 31.1 An ordinary resolution to be proposed at a general meeting may be amended by ordinary resolution if:
- 31.1.1 notice of the proposed amendment is given to the company in writing by a person entitled to vote at the general meeting at which it is to be proposed not less than 48 hours before the meeting is to take place (or such later time as the chair of the meeting may determine) and
- 31.1.2 the proposed amendment does not, in the reasonable opinion of the chair of the meeting, materially alter the scope of the resolution.
- 31.2 A special resolution to be proposed at a general meeting may be amended by ordinary resolution, if:
- 31.2.1 the chair of the meeting proposes the amendment at the general meeting at which the resolution is to be proposed and
- 31.2.2 the amendment does not go beyond what is necessary to correct a grammatical or other nonsubstantive error in the resolution.
- 31.3 If the chair of the meeting, acting in good faith, wrongly decides that an amendment to a resolution is out of order, the chair's error does not invalidate the vote on that resolution.

BOARD

32 The number of Members of the Board

shall not be less than five and unless and until varied by ordinary resolution of the Company shall no more than twelve.

33 Subject to Article 35

any person who is willing to be appointed as a Director of Company (including for the avoidance of doubt the Chief Operating Officer) may be appointed by:

- i an ordinary resolution of the Members; or
- ii Resolution of the Board

Any non-executive director appointed pursuant to Article 34i shall remain in office until the next Annual General Meeting of the Company at which time their appointment will be required to be approved by ordinary resolution of the Members. In the absence of a resolution duly passed at that meeting, the non-executive director in question will be automatically removed from office.

34 The Board shall comprise as a minimum:

- i The following non-executive directors:
 - a) the Chair, who shall be an independent non-executive director and citizen of the United Kingdom;
 - b) an independent non-executive Finance & Legal Director
 - c) an independent non-executive Governance & Compliance Director
 - d) Elected representatives from the Full Member organisations as non-executive directors with specialist knowledge and experience of Taekwondo club development, grassroots sport and member engagement
- ii The following executive officers:
 - a) Two executive officers with specialist knowledge and experience of Safeguarding, Taekwondo-specific national programmes and business management
 - b) The Chief Operating Officer (COO) of the Company from time to time for the duration of the office who shall, subject to approval of the use of the title by an ordinary resolution of the Members at the first Annual General Meeting of the Company following their appointment as Chief Operating Officer (or, in the case of a Chief Executive appointed prior to the adoption of these Articles and continuing in that role after that date, at the first Annual General Meeting after that date), also be known as the Secretary General

35.1 The Chief Operating Officer of the Company and the Chair of the Company may not be the same person. One of the Independent Non-Executive Directors, other than the Chair of the Company, shall also be appointed as a Senior Independent Director with additional responsibilities as defined by the Code for Sports Governance.

35.2 In addition, the Company may permit:

One or more observers from stakeholder partners or invited guests to attend board meetings at the full discretion of the board.

Observers may contribute to the meeting when invited by the Chair but carry no voting rights and may be required to leave the meeting if requested when voting on matters occur.

36 The Board shall endeavour to ensure that:

- i not less than 25% of the Board is constituted of Independent Non-Executive Directors;
- ii it is committed to diversity in the board membership and Senior Leadership Team, promoting the inclusion of female, disabled, diverse ethnic groups, LGBTQ+, older and state educated members
- iii if practicable, the Chair shall be independent (in which case they will count within the 25% figure referred to at sub-paragraph (i) above; and
- iv Non-Executive Director vacancies on the Board are advertised internally, Independent Non-Executive Director vacancies are advertised externally. All Board appointments must be based on a skills assessment.

37 Each Director

(other than the Chief Operating Officer and other executive officers) shall serve for an initial term expiring on the date of the third annual general meeting after the date of their appointment. Upon the expiry of this initial term, the relevant Director shall be eligible for re-appointment for a further term of four years, i.e. constituting two terms in aggregate (9 years maximum to facilitate induction of new Director). After completing the maximum of two consecutive terms, a director shall not be eligible for re-appointment until four years has elapsed. In the event a Director is:

- Subsequently appointed as the Chair following a period of service as a Director on the Board;
 or
- ii Appointed to a senior position within their sport's international federation while serviing as a Director;

That Director may continue to serve on the Board for the period of such appointment, subject to a maximum term of 12 years on the Board inclusive of their term prior to such appointment.

This Article shall not apply to the Chief Operating Officer or other executive director positions of the Company (from time to time) whose term of office shall run concurrently with their employment.

DISQUALIFICATION OF THE MEMBERS OF THE BOARD

38 A person ceases to be a director as soon as:

- 38.1 that person ceases to be a director by virtue of any provision of the Companies Act 2006 or is prohibited from being a director by law;
- 38.2 a bankruptcy order is made against that person;
- 38.3 a composition is made with that person's creditors generally in satisfaction of that person's debts;
- 38.4 a registered medical practitioner who is treating that person gives a written opinion to the company stating that that person has become physically or mentally incapable of acting as a director and may remain so for more than three months;
- 38.5 notification is received by the company from the director that the director is resigning from office and such resignation has taken effect in accordance with its terms; or

- 38.6 the Board resolve, in its reasonable opinion, that that person is not a fit and proper person to be a director of the Company; or
- 38.7 the director representing a Full Member organisation ceases to be a member of that organisation.

39 Unless the Board resolves otherwise

any member of the Board who shall, without sufficient reason, absent themself from three consecutive meetings of the Board, will be understood to have resigned their position as a member of the Board and the Board shall be entitled to appoint another member of the Board in their place pursuant to Article 34i(d).

POWERS OF THE BOARD

40 Subject to the Articles

the directors are responsible for the management of the company's business, for which purpose they may exercise all the powers of the company.

41 Powers of the Board

- 41.1 The business and affairs of the Company shall be managed by the Board.
- 41.2 The Board may:
- 41.2.1 pay all expenses preliminary and incidental to the promotion of the Company's objects as they think fit and
- 41.2.2 subject to Article 42.3, exercise all such powers of the Company and do on behalf of the Company all such acts as may be exercised and done by the Company.
- 41.3 The Board may not do any act that by the Act, these Articles or by regulation prescribed by the Company by Special Resolution:
- 41.3.1 is prohibited or
- 41.3.2 is required to be exercised or done by the Company in general meeting.
- 41.4 No regulation made by the Company in general meeting shall invalidate any prior act of the Board which would have been valid if such regulation had not been made.
- 42 The Board may act notwithstanding any vacancy in its body.

43 If the Board shall at any time consist of less than the number prescribed

by or in accordance with these Articles, it shall be lawful for them to act as the Board for the purpose of admitting persons to Membership of the Company, or summoning a general meeting, but not for any other purpose.

PROCEEDINGS OF THE BOARD

44 The Board may meet for

the dispatch of business, adjourn and otherwise regulate their meetings as they think fit, provided that at least four such meetings shall be held in each year.

45 Calling a directors' meeting:

- 45.1 Any director may call a Board meeting by giving notice of the meeting to the directors.
- 45.2 Notice of any directors' meeting must indicate -
- 45.2.1 its proposed date and time;
- 45.2.2 where it is to take place; and
- 45.2.3 if it is anticipated that directors participating in the meeting will not be in the same place, how it is proposed that they should communicate with each other during the meeting.
- 45.3 Notice of a directors' meeting must be given to each director, either in writing or by email.

45.4 Notice of a directors' meeting need not be given to directors who waive their entitlement to notice of that meeting, by giving notice to that effect to the company not more than 7 days after the date on which the meeting is held. Where such notice is given after the meeting has been held, that does not affect the validity of the meeting, or of any business conducted at it.

46 Questions arising

at a meeting shall be decided by a majority of votes. Voting on any issue shall be by show of hands. Each member of the Board shall be entitled to one vote. In the case of an equality of votes, however, the chair of the meeting shall have a second or casting vote.

47 If the Chair is unwilling or unable to preside

at a meeting of the Board or is not present within five minutes after the time appointed for the meeting, the members of the Board present may appoint one of their number to be chair of the meeting.

48 A meeting of the Board at which a quorum is present

shall be competent to exercise all the authorities, powers and discretions by or under the regulations of the Company for the time being vested in the Board generally. The quorum for meetings of the Board shall be five directors, one of whom must be an independent director. The quorum for meetings of committees shall be three.

COMMITTEES

49 Directors may delegate:

- 49.1 Subject to the Articles, the directors may delegate, as they think fit, any of the powers which are conferred on them under the Articles:
- 49.1.1 to such person or committee;
- 49.1.2 by such means (including by power of attorney);
- 49.1.3 to such an extent;
- 49.1.4 in relation to such matters or territories; and
- 49.1.5 on such terms and conditions.
- 49.2 If the directors so specify, any such delegation may authorise further delegation of the directors' powers by any person to whom they are delegated.
- 49.3 The directors may revoke any delegation in whole or part or alter its terms and conditions.

50 The Board shall have the power

to form and maintain committees to focus on the principal areas and disciplines of Taekwondo.

51 Each committee shall be formed

from Members and interested parties selected by the Board from time to time.

52 The remit of each committee

shall be set and amended from time to time by the Board. The committees shall assist the Board in the furtherance of the Company's objectives, and, to that end, each committee shall report to the Board regularly and upon request as to their activities.

53 Committees to which the directors delegate any of their powers

must follow procedures which are based as far as they are applicable on those provisions of the Articles that govern the taking of decisions by directors.

54 The directors may make rules of procedure for all or any committees

Such rules of procedure prevail over rules derived from the Articles if they are not consistent with them.

55 The committees may include:

i the Audit and Risk committee

- ii the Nominations & Renumeration committee (of which the chair of the board shall be the chair of the committee and the majority of the committee shall be independent nonexecutive directors)
- iii Membership Services Committee
- iv Disciplinary Committee; and
- v any committees formed by the Board pursuant to the powers granted to it by article 51.

56 All acts done bona fide by:

- i any meeting of the Board;
- ii any committee; or
- iii by any person acting as a member of the Board shall, even it afterwards it is discovered:
 - (a) that there was some defect in the meeting or appointment or continuance in office of any such member of the Board or person acting as a member of the Board; or
 - (b) that they or any of them were disqualified,

be as valid as if every such person had been duly appointed or had duly continued in office or as if there was no defect in the relevant meeting, so long as that act is made known to the Board as soon as reasonably practicable and stands unchallenged by them at the following Board meeting.

57 The Board shall cause proper minutes to be made

of all appointments of the Board and of the proceedings of all meetings of the Company and of the Board and of committees, and all business transacted at such meetings, and any such minutes of any meeting shall be put for approval to the following meeting of the Board or subcommittee. Such approval shall be conclusive evidence of the facts therein stated.

58 A written resolution signed by all the members of the Board

for the time being or by all the members for the time being of any committee who are entitled to receive notice of a meeting of the Board or of such committee shall be as valid and effectual as if it had been passed at a meeting of the Board or of such committee duly convened and constituted.

VIDEO CONFERENCE / TELEPHONE MEETINGS / MEETINGS BY E-MAIL

59 A member of the Board may participate in a meeting

of the Board, or of a committee, by way of video conferencing or conference telephone or similar equipment which allows every person participating to hear and speak to one another throughout such meeting. A person so participating shall be deemed to be present in person at the meeting and shall accordingly be counted in the quorum and be entitled to vote. Such a meeting shall be deemed to take place where the largest group of those participating is assembled or, if there is no such group, where the chair of the meeting is.

60 In the case of matters that are urgent and non-contentious

or that only require the approval of the Board as a formality, members of the Board may convene and vote at a meeting by electronic mail. The outcomes of such votes shall be authoritative and shall be appended to the minutes of the previous meeting of the Board and shall be formally considered at the following meeting of the Board.

RECORDS OF DECISIONS TO BE KEPT

61 The directors must ensure that the company keeps a record

in writing, for at least 10 years from the date of the decision recorded, of every unanimous or majority decision taken by the directors.

DIRECTORS' DISCRETION TO MAKE FURTHER RULES

62 Subject to the Articles

the directors may make any rule which they think fit about how they take decisions and about how such rules are to be recorded or communicated to directors.

DIRECTORS' CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

63 The directors may

in accordance with the requirements set out in this Article, authorise any Conflict proposed to them by any director which would, if not authorised, involve a director (an Interested Director) breaching their duty under section 175 of the Act to avoid conflicts of interest.

64 Any authorisation under Article 64 shall be effective only if:

- i to the extent permitted by the Act, the matter in question shall have been proposed by any director for consideration in the same way that any other matter may be proposed to the directors under the provisions of these Articles or in such other manner as the directors may determine;
- ii the quorum required for consideration of the relevant matter is met without counting the Interested Director; and
- iii the matter was agreed to without the Interested Director voting or would have been agreed to if the Interested Director's vote had not been counted.

65 Any authorisation of a Conflict

under these Articles 64 to 70 may (whether at the time of giving the authorisation or subsequently):

- extend to any actual or potential conflict of interest which may reasonably be expected to arise out of the matter or situation so authorised;
- ii provide that the Interested Director be excluded from the receipt of documents and information and the participation in discussions (whether at meetings of the directors or otherwise) related to the Conflict;
- iii provide that the Interested Director shall or shall not be an Eligible Director in respect of any future decision of the directors in relation to any resolution related to the Conflict;
- iv impose upon the Interested Director such other terms for the purposes of dealing with the Conflict as the directors think fit:
- v provide that, where the Interested Director obtains, or has obtained (through their involvement in the Conflict and otherwise than through their position as a director of the Company) information that is confidential to a third party, they shall not be obliged to disclose that information to the Company, or to use it in relation to the Company's affairs where to do so would amount to a breach of that confidence; and
- vi permit the Interested Director to absent themself from the discussion of matters relating to the Conflict at any meeting of the directors and be excused from reviewing papers prepared by, or for, the directors to the extent they relate to such matters.

66 Where the directors authorise a Conflict

the Interested Director shall be obliged to conduct themself in accordance with any terms and conditions imposed by the directors in relation to the Conflict.

67 The directors may revoke or vary such authorisation

at any time, but this shall not affect anything done by the Interested Director prior to such revocation or variation in accordance with the terms of such authorisation.

68 A director shall not

by reason of their office, be accountable to the Company for any benefit which they derive from any such office or employment or from any such transaction or arrangement or from any interest in any such body corporate and no such transaction or arrangement shall be liable to be avoided on the ground of any such interest or benefit.

- 69 Subject to sections 177(5) and 177(6) and sections 182(5) and 182(6) of the Act and provided they have declared the nature and extent of their interest in accordance with the requirements of the Act, a director who is in any way, whether directly or indirectly, interested in an existing or proposed transaction or arrangement with the Company:
- i may be a party to, or otherwise interested in, any transaction or arrangement with the Company or in which the Company is otherwise (directly or indirectly) interested;
- ii shall be an Eligible Director for the purposes of any proposed decision of the directors (or committee of directors) in respect of such existing or proposed transaction or arrangement in which they are interested;
- iii shall be entitled to vote at a meeting of directors (or of a committee of the directors) or participate in any unanimous decision, in respect of such existing or proposed transaction or arrangement in which they are interested:
- iv may act by themself or their firm in a professional capacity for the Company (otherwise than as auditor) and they or their firm shall be entitled to remuneration for professional services as if they were not a director;
- v may be a director or other officer of, or employed by, or a party to a transaction or arrangement with, or otherwise interested in, any body corporate in which the Company is otherwise (directly or indirectly) interested; and
- vi shall not, save as they may otherwise agree, be accountable to the Company for any benefit which they or a person connected with them (as defined in section 252 of the Act) derives from any such transaction or arrangement or from any such office or employment or from any interest in any such body corporate and no such transaction or arrangement shall be liable to be avoided on the grounds of any such interest or benefit nor shall the receipt of any such remuneration or other benefit constitute a breach of their duty under section 176 of the Act

REMUNERATION AND EXPENSES

70 Directors' remuneration:

- 70.1 Directors may undertake any services for the company that the directors decide.
- 70.2 Directors are entitled to such remuneration as the directors determine:
- 70.2.1 for their services to the company as directors, and
- 70.2.2 for any other service which they undertake for the company.
- 70.3 Subject to the Articles, a director's remuneration may:
- 70.3.1 take any form, and
- 70.3.2 include any arrangements in connection with the payment of a pension, allowance or gratuity, or any death, sickness or disability benefits, to or in respect of that director.
- 70.4 Unless the directors decide otherwise, directors' remuneration accrues from day to day.
- 70.5 Unless the directors decide otherwise, directors are not accountable to the company for any remuneration which they receive as directors or other officers or employees of the company's subsidiaries or of any other body corporate in which the company is interested.
- 71 Directors' expenses
- 71.1 The company may pay any reasonable expenses which the directors properly incur in connection with their attendance at:
- 71.1.1 meetings of directors or committees of directors,
- 71.1.2 general meetings, or

71.1.3 separate meetings of the holders of debentures of the company, or otherwise in connection with the exercise of their powers and the discharge of their responsibilities in relation to the company.

ACCOUNTS

72 The Board shall cause accounting records of the Company

to be kept in accordance with the Act and any regulations made pursuant thereto (or as the same may be hereafter amended or altered).

73 Accounting records

shall be kept at the registered office of the Company or, subject to the Act, at such other place or places as the Board shall think fit and shall always be open to the inspection of the Board.

74 The Board shall lay before the annual general meeting of the Company

a proper income and expenditure account for the period since the last preceding account together with a proper balance sheet made up as at the same date.

AUDIT

75 At least once every year

the accounts of the Company shall be examined, and the correctness of the income and expenditure account and balance sheet ascertained by one or more appropriately qualified auditor or auditors.

76 External auditors shall be appointed

and their duties regulated in accordance with the Act. The appointment of the auditors shall be recommended by the Board and approved at the Annual General Meeting

NOTICES AND COMMUNICATIONS

77 Subject to the Articles

anything to be sent by or to the Company under the Articles may be sent in any way provided for by the Act and, additionally, any notice or document to be sent to a director by the Company may also be sent by any means by which that director has asked to be sent such notices or documents for the time being.

78 A director may agree with the Company

that notices or documents sent to that director in a particular way are to be deemed to have been received within a specified time of their being sent and for the specified time to be less than 48 hours.

79 The Company may validly send or supply any document

(including any notice) or information to a Member in hard copy form, electronic form or by making it available on the Website in accordance with and subject to the "company communication provisions" of the Act, but this Article does not affect any other provision in any relevant legislation or these Articles requiring notices or documents to be supplied or delivered in a particular way.

80 The following provisions shall apply

in relation to documents (including notices) and information sent or supplied by the Company to a Member.

- i Where a document or information (whether in hard copy form or electronic form) is delivered by hand, it is deemed to have been received by the intended recipient at the time it is handed to or left for the Members.
- ii Where a document or information (whether in hard copy form or electronic form) is sent by post or courier, to an address in the United Kingdom, it is treated as being received by the intended recipient:
 - a) 48 hours after it was posted, if first class post was used; or

- b) 72 hours after it was posted or given to the courier, if first class post was not used; provided that it was properly addressed and either put into the post system or given to the courier with postage or delivery paid.
- iii Where a document or information is sent by fax or electronic mail, it is deemed to have been received by the intended recipient at the time it was sent provided that it was sent to the correct fax number or email address.
- iv Where a document or information is sent by means of the website, it is deemed to have been received by the intended recipient when the material was first made available on the Website or, if later, when the recipient received (or is deemed to have received) information that was available on the website.
- v Proof that a notice contained in a communication in electronic form was sent in accordance with guidance issued by the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators shall be conclusive evidence that the notice was given.

RULES, REGULATIONS, STANDING ORDERS AND BYE-LAWS

81 The Board shall have the power

to make, vary and revoke rules, regulations, mechanisms, standing orders and bye-laws for the better administration of the Company including (without limitation):

- i Competition Rules for BTC national events;
- ii rules for the selection of competitors to represent the United Kingdom in international matches and competitions;
- iii rules to combat doping in Taekwondo and to ensure compliance with national and international rules relating to doping control;
- iv mechanisms for co-ordinating the arrangement of and the date of fixtures of Taekwondo competitions/events;
- v mechanisms for co-ordinating the commercial activities of the sport of Taekwondo and any televising or broadcasting of Taekwondo competitions;
- vi regulations for the conduct of elections; and

vii rules relating to discipline for Taekwondo participants or other appropriate persons.

AMENDMENTS TO ARTICLES

82 These Articles may be amended by the Company

at any time by special resolution passed at a duly convened general meeting of the Company.

INDEMNITY AND INSURANCE

83 Subject to Article 85

but without prejudice to any indemnity to which a relevant director or officer is otherwise entitled:

- i each relevant director or officer shall be indemnified out of the Company's assets against all costs, charges, losses, expenses and liabilities incurred by them as a relevant director or officer:
 - a) in the actual or purported execution and/or discharge of their duties, or in relation to them; and
 - b) in relation to the Company's (or any associated company's) activities as trustee of an occupational pension scheme (as defined in section 235(6) of the Act), including (in each case) any liability incurred by them in defending any civil or criminal proceedings, in which judgment is given in their favour or in which they are acquitted or the proceedings are otherwise disposed of without any finding or admission of any material breach of duty on their part or in connection with any application in which the court grants them, in their capacity as a relevant director or officer, relief from liability for negligence, default, breach

of duty or breach of trust in relation to the Company's (or any associated company's) affairs; and

ii the Company may provide any relevant director or officer with funds to meet expenditure incurred or to be incurred by them in connection with any proceedings or application referred to in Article 84.

iii and otherwise may take any action to enable any such relevant officer to avoid incurring such expenditure.

84 Article 84

does not authorise any indemnity to the extent that such indemnity would be prohibited or rendered void by any provision of the Companies Act or by any other provision of law and any such indemnity is limited accordingly.

85 The directors may decide

to purchase and maintain insurance, at the expense of the Company, for the benefit of any relevant director or officer in respect of any relevant loss.

86 In Articles 83 to 86:

- i companies are associated if one is a subsidiary of the other or both are subsidiaries of the same body corporate; and
- ii a "relevant loss" means any loss or liability which has been or may be incurred by a relevant officer in connection with that relevant director or officer's duties or powers in relation to the Company, any associated company or any pension fund or employees' share scheme of the Company or associated company; and
- iii a "relevant officer" means any director or other officer or former director or other officer of the Company.

APPENDIX A

BRITISH TAEKWONDO COUNCIL LTD

MEMBERSHIP TERMS & CONDITIONS / RULES & REGULATIONS

- Although every Member Organisation is autonomous in their operation, the BTC do impose the following rules within their membership status;
- Organisation representatives to the BTC must be of a stature that they represent the interest
 of their organisation and hold a mandate to vote on their behalf. Written confirmation on letter
 headed paper from the organisation stating representative status is required, then and only
 then will that representative be accepted at Board meetings.
- Licences must be returned monthly regardless of numbers with the appropriate fee.
- Dual membership is allowed in the BTC for the purpose of Olympic / International selections.
- A group's rules & regulations must not conflict with the rules, regulations or aims of BTC.
- · All members must be insured via the BTC only.
- Minimum age for a BTC instructor is 18 years of age.
- All instructors must complete and renew periodically BTC Registered Instructor accreditation.
- All instructors must hold Professional Indemnity Insurance via the BTC.
- All Applicants must have no outstanding disputes financial or otherwise with an existing Member.
- No Member organisation within the BTC shall refer to itself as a national governing body.
- The BTC Transfer Policy governs movement from one organisation to another and this must be adhered to at all times.
- All events organised by BTC Member Organisations will be for BTC members only, with the exception of international non-UK participants / competitors.
- Directors, Officers and Committee Members of the BTC and Member Organisations of the BTC are not permitted to attend non-BTC national events in an official capacity.
- Any BTC member organisation must not invite any non-BTC members to attend any of their events in an official capacity.
- In the event of any instructor/ Member resigning or being expelled from their membership, their insurance will become invalid from that date.
- BTC Member to Member insurance is for participation in BTC-authorised activities only.
- Transferring from one organisation to another, all present membership and insurance will become invalid.
- Independents. Any groups whose style is based on either WT or ITF but have no International
 Affiliation or recognition with these groups and have no intention of seeking this recognition.
 No reference either on any website or literature must be made to any of the International
 Bodies. No correspondence unless via the proper membership channels must be made to any
 of these bodies. Kukkiwon Certification and events are still available as a WT-style
 Independent.
- ITF these are groups who have recognition with one of the recognised international bodies within the BTC.
- All member organisations are held responsible for their instructor/members actions and will be held accountable should it be proven that any individual is in breach of the BTC Membership Rules and Regulations. Failure to act upon a directive from BTC could result in the member organisation being put into disciplinary procedure.

APPENDIX B

BRITISH TAEKWONDO COUNCIL LTD

MEMBERSHIP APPLICATION PROCEDURE

On the application of an organisation to the BTC will be directed to Membership Services and then presented to the Board.

- 1. Membership Services will contact the applying organisation with their contact details and at that point informing the organisation of the requirements to join the BTC and that any further contact will be through Membership Services.
- 2. All correspondence between BTC Membership Services and the applying organisation should be by letter or email. Correspondence letters/email should always be time dated by BTC Membership Services.
- 3. At the following BTC Board meeting, Membership Services will present all the information about the applying organisation and any recommendations or objections can be raised at this time.
- 4. If the voting Members of the BTC Board have no objections they will accept the organisation or ask that the leader of the organisation attend the next meeting for further clarification.
- 5. On acceptance the new organisation has until the next BTC meeting to pay the appropriate fees. If the fees have not been paid by this time the application will be rejected
- 6. Applications from a group currently in membership of an existing Member Organisation will be referred to the Transfer Procedure.

LIST OF REQUIREMENTS

- 1. The name of the organisation and number of students within the organisation.
- 2. Chairman/leader/president of applying organisation who should be IV Dan or above
- 3. Details of contact person
- 4. Submit their Constitution, which should not conflict with the BTC Constitution
- List of instructors' grades and history

From the first contact point of the applying group to acceptance/rejection should be no longer than 6 months.

APPENDIX C

BRITISH TAEKWONDO COUNCIL LTD

BTC TRANSFER PROCEDURE

- 1. Only Taekwondo "Schools" need follow transfer procedure. (School is defined as students led by an Instructor in a regular venue.)
- 2. When a BTC Member Organisation is contacted about a potential transfer they must immediately inform the parent organisation by a recorded method, ie email.
- 3. If both organisations agree on the transfer then the transfer can proceed with both organisations informing Membership Services which will report this to the next BTC Board meeting and of any further action needed.
- 4. If both organisations do not agree on the transfer then a BTC Transfer form (appended below) must be completed and forwarded to Membership Services which will investigate and bring before the next BTC meeting for approval/rejection of the voting members. To reject the transfer there must be evidence of the following:
 - · An outstanding financial commitment
 - · legal proceedings by one or both
 - · return of equipment belonging to parent group
- 5. All disputed transfers agreed by the BTC must have a cooling off period of 12 months. The cooling off period starts on the date of the BTC meeting at which it was agreed.

BTC TRANSFER FORM

(to be completed by the Club Instructor)

Name:			
Association:		Resignation Date:	
Reason for Resignation:			
Membership of previous organisations:		Membership Dates:	
Organisation applied to:			
Declaration: I acknowledge that, by changing Association, my insurance is invalid.		Signature:	
		Date:	
Transfer Approved		Transfer Rejected	
BTC Meeting Date:		BTC Meeting Date:	
Confirmed:			
Board Representative:		Date:	

APPENDIX D

BRITISH TAEKWONDO COUNCIL LTD

STATEMENT OF INTENT

PATHWAYS TO BECOME AN INTERNATIONAL TAEKWONDO REPRESENTATIVE IN NORTHERN IRELAND

To help create an inclusive sporting environment for all people involved within Taekwondo, BTC Ltd will outline the pathways available for Taekwondo competitors within Northern Ireland to enable them to represent either Ireland or Team GB.

BTC Ltd (ITF/Independent stylists) will meet with other Taekwondo recognised bodies in the UK; British Taekwondo (WT), SCoT and Welsh Sports Association (WSA) to outline every route to participate internationally for Team GB through each of the home nations. When a Taekwondo competitor wins a national championship this is when they may be offered the chance to compete internationally and so it is imperative at this point we make them aware of all international routes available to them and key considerations such as cost, accessibility, eligibility requirements and relevant international organisation's rules. We will produce a leaflet to distribute to any Taekwondo competitor who enters a development squad so they can make an informed decision regarding their own Taekwondo career.